

MAINE STATE LEGISLATURE

The following document is provided by the
LAW AND LEGISLATIVE DIGITAL LIBRARY
at the Maine State Law and Legislative Reference Library
<http://legislature.maine.gov/lawlib>



Reproduced from scanned originals with text recognition applied
(searchable text may contain some errors and/or omissions)

LAWS
OF THE
STATE OF MAINE
AS PASSED BY THE

ONE HUNDRED AND TENTH LEGISLATURE

FIRST REGULAR SESSION
December 3, 1980 to June 19, 1981

AND AT THE

FIRST SPECIAL SESSION
August 3, 1981

**PUBLISHED BY THE DIRECTOR OF LEGISLATIVE RESEARCH IN
ACCORDANCE WITH MAINE REVISED STATUTES ANNOTATED, TITLE
3, SECTION 164, SUBSECTION 6.**

K.J. Printing Co.
Augusta, Maine
1981

PUBLIC LAWS
OF THE
STATE OF MAINE

AS PASSED AT THE
FIRST REGULAR SESSION

of the
ONE HUNDRED AND TENTH LEGISLATURE

1981

3. Certificate mailed or delivered to Secretary of State. Mail or deliver the certificate to the Secretary of State who will release the lienholder's rights from his records and on the certificate and mail or deliver the certificate to the owner named therein or to a person who has been authorized by the owner to receive the certificate.

Sec. 26. 29 MRSA § 2442, sub-§ 1, first sentence, as repealed and replaced by PL 1981, c. 110, § 39 is amended to read:

A person who ~~with fraudulent intent~~ commits any of the following is guilty of a Class D crime:

Sec. 27. 29 MRSA § 2443, sub-§ 1, ¶¶ A, B and C, as repealed and replaced by PL 1981, c. 110, § 40, are amended to read:

A. ~~With fraudulent intent, permits~~ Permits another, not entitled thereto, to use or have possession of a certificate of title or a certificate of salvage;

B. ~~Willfully fails~~ Fails to mail or deliver a certificate of title, certificate of salvage or application thereof to the Secretary of State within 10 days after the time required by this chapter;

C. ~~Willfully fails~~ Fails to deliver to his transferee a certificate of title or certificate of salvage within 10 days after the time required by this chapter; ~~or~~

Sec. 28. 29 MRSA § 2443, sub-§ 1, ¶ D, as repealed and replaced by PL 1981, c. 110, § 40 is repealed and the following enacted in its place:

D. Fails to have a correctly assigned clear title to a vehicle as required by section 2373; or

Sec. 29. 29 MRSA § 2443, sub-§ 1, ¶ E is enacted to read:

E. Violates any provision of this chapter, except as provided in section 2442.

Sec. 30. 29 MRSA § 2444, sub-§ 3, last sentence, as enacted by PL 1981, c. 110, § 41, is amended to read:

An operator of a place of business for garaging, repairing, parking or storing vehicles for the public, in which a vehicle remains unclaimed for a period of ~~6 months~~ **90 days**, may comply with section ~~895-A~~ **895-B**.

Effective September 18, 1981

AN ACT to Authorize Municipal and Quasi-municipal Water Districts to Set Rates.

Be it enacted by the People of the State of Maine, as follows:

Sec. 1. 35 MRSA § 3 is amended to read:

§ 3. Rules; assistance

The commission may make all necessary rules ~~and regulations~~ and may employ such expert, professional or other assistance as is necessary in making investigations or in otherwise carrying out ~~chapters 1 to 17~~ its responsibilities under this Title.

Sec. 2. 35 MRSA § 15, sub-§ 4-A is enacted to read:

4-A. Customer. "Customer" includes any person, firm, corporation, government or governmental division which has applied for and is granted service or which is responsible for payment of the service.

Sec. 3. 35 MRSA § 69, 3rd ¶, as enacted by PL 1977, c. 75, § 1, is amended to read:

This section shall not apply to municipal or quasi-municipal corporations which are water companies within the definition of section 15, subsection 25, ~~and which serve 400 or fewer customers~~ any provisions in any charter notwithstanding, ~~and which elect to proceed pursuant to the terms of section 72, unless by the express terms of section 72 the provisions of this section are made applicable to those corporations.~~

Sec. 4. 35 MRSA § 72, as enacted by PL 1977, c. 75, § 2, is repealed and the following enacted in its place:

§ 72. Municipal and quasi-municipal water companies

Notwithstanding section 69, municipal and quasi-municipal corporations which are water companies within the definition of section 15, subsection 25, shall be subject to the suspension, investigation, hearing and rate substitution provisions of section 69 under the conditions specified in this section.

Municipal and quasi-municipal water corporations which elect to set rates under this section shall not file with the commission or increase any rate, toll or charge without first holding a public hearing at which any person, firm or corporation which pays such rates, tolls or charges to the municipal or quasi-municipal water corporations may testify and may question the officials present regarding such proposed increase. The municipal or quasi-municipal water corporation as described in this section shall, at least 14 days prior to the hearing,

publish a notice of the proposed rate increase and the hearing including the date, time, place and purpose of the hearing at least twice in a newspaper of general circulation in the area encompassed by the municipal or quasi-municipal water corporation. In addition, each municipal or quasi-municipal water corporation shall give one notice of the proposed rate increase and the date, time and place of the hearing to each of its ratepayers. At the commencement of each hearing held pursuant to this section, the municipal or quasi-municipal water corporation shall inform those present that the rate increase may be investigated by the Public Utilities Commission in accordance with this section.

If, on or before the effective date of the rate change, 15% of the customers of the municipal or quasi-municipal water corporation or 1,000 customers, whichever is less, file with the treasurer of the corporation and with the Public Utilities Commission petitions demanding a review of the rate changes by the Public Utilities Commission, the rate change may be suspended, investigated, reviewed and changed in accordance with section 69.

Nothing in this section may prohibit a municipal or quasi-municipal water corporation from petitioning the Public Utilities Commission for review pursuant to section 69 in the first instance.

Upon review of a rate filing made pursuant to this section, the Public Utilities Commission may order the municipal or quasi-municipal water corporation to correct any mathematical or clerical errors.

Sec. 5. 35 MRSA § 73 is enacted to read:

§ 73. Rates for municipal and quasi-municipal water companies

1. Scope of section. Notwithstanding any other provision of law or any charter to the contrary and in addition to any charter or private and special laws creating or affecting any municipal water department or quasi-municipal water district, the rate, toll or charge made, exacted, demanded or collected by any municipal water department or quasi-municipal water district, is governed by this section.

2. Definition. As used in this section, the term "governing body" means the governing body of a municipal water department or quasi-municipal water district.

3. Just and reasonable rates. The governing body shall establish rates, tolls or charges which are just and reasonable and which provide revenue as may be required to perform its public utility service and to attract necessary capital on just and reasonable terms.

4. Uniform rates. The governing body shall establish rates which are uniform within the territory supplied whenever the installation and maintenance of mains and the cost of service is substantially uniform. If, for any reason, the cost of

construction and maintenance or the cost of service in a section of the territory exceeds the average, the governing body may establish higher rates for that section, but these higher rates shall be uniform throughout that section.

5. Purposes. The governing body may establish rates under this section so as to provide revenue for the following purposes, but no other:

A. To pay the current expenses for operating and maintaining the water system and to provide for normal renewals and replacements;

B. To provide for the payment of the interest on the indebtedness created or assumed by the utility;

C. To provide each year a sum equal to not less than 2% nor more than 10% of the term indebtedness represented by the issuance of bonds created or assumed by the utility, which sum shall be turned into a sinking fund and there kept to provide for the extinguishment of term indebtedness. The money set aside in this sinking fund shall be devoted to the retirement of the term obligations of the utility and may be invested in such securities as savings banks in the State are allowed to hold;

D. To provide for annual principal payments on serial indebtedness created or assumed by the utility; and

E. To provide for a contingency reserve fund by providing rates to reflect up to a 5% addition to yearly revenues over what is required to operate the water company, in accordance with section 3311.

Effective September 18, 1981

CHAPTER 439

H. P. 1526 — L. D. 1636

AN ACT Assuring Legislative Participation in Nuclear Waste Repository Research and Development Activity within the State.

Be it enacted by the People of the State of Maine, as follows:

Sec. 1. 10 MRSA § 52, sub-§§ 2-A and 2-B are enacted to read:

2-A. Environmental impact statement. "Environmental impact statement" means any document prepared pursuant to or in compliance with the requirements of the United States National Environmental Policy Act of 1969, Section 102(2) (c), 83 Stat. 852.

2-B. High-level waste. "High-level waste" means spent nuclear fuel,